# **AGREEMENT**

# GOUVERNEUR CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

and

GOUVERNEUR SCHOOL RELATED PERSONNEL UNION

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

		raye
ARTICLE 1	AGREEMENT	2
ARTICLE 2	RECOGNITION	2
ARTICLE 3	RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES	3
ARTICLE 4	AREAS FOR DECISION AND AGREEMENT	4
ARTICLE 5	PROCEDURES FOR CONDUCTING NEGOTIATIONS	4
ARTICLE 6	CONDITIONS OF WORK	5
ARTICLE 7	CONTINUITY OF SERVICE	7
ARTICLE 8	CONFERENCE(S)	7
ARTICLE 9	HEALTH INSURANCE PROGRAM	7
ARTICLE 10	HOLIDAYS	9
ARTICLE 11	VACATIONS	9
ARTICLE 12	SICK LEAVE	10
ARTICLE 13	FLEXIBLE BENEFITS	14
ARTICLE 14	SPECIAL LEAVES	14
ARTICLE 15	SENIORITY	15
ARTICLE 16	VACANCIES	16
ARTICLE 17	LAYOFF - RECALL	16
ARTICLE 18	SALARY	17
ARTICLE 19	RETIREMENT PLAN	19
ARTICLE 20	EVALUATIONS	19
ARTICLE 21	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	20
ARTICLE 22	PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS	21
ARTICLE 23	ORGANIZATION ACTIVITIES	22
ARTICLE 24	DURATION	22

# AGREEMENT

Superintendent of Schools (designated Appointee of the Board of Education, Gouverneur Central School District)

and

Gouverneur School Related Personnel Union

Pursuant to Article 14 of the State Civil Service Law, the Board of Education, Gouverneur Central School District, hereby adopts the following AGREEMENT covering recognition of the Gouverneur School Related Personnel Union and the methods by which negotiations shall take place with said organization.

# ARTICLE 1 AGREEMENT

This Agreement made and entered into this 11th day of April 2022, by and between the Superintendent of Schools, Gouverneur Central School District (designated Appointee of the Board of Education) hereinafter referred to as the <u>Superintendent</u> and the Gouverneur School Related Personnel Union, hereinafter referred to as the Union.

#### ARTICLE 2 RECOGNITION

The Board, in order to recognize a Union as the exclusive representative of school related personnel requires satisfactory evidence that the Union in fact represents a majority of such employees. Such evidence shall be in the form of a notarized membership list. In the event of a challenge, the Board will proceed according to the regulations of the Public Employee Relations Board (PERB) established under Article 14 of the Civil Service Law. By virtue of satisfactory evidence submitted by the Union to the Board that the Union does represent the majority of school related employees in the district, the Board hereby recognizes the Union as the official negotiating agent for the following school related employees employed in the district: Cafeteria Workers, Cafeteria Monitors, Custodians, Custodial Workers, Couriers, Cleaners, Clerical, Teacher Aides, Individual Aides, LPNs and Maintenance and Groundskeeper Personnel. The Union shall submit to the Superintendent of Schools by December 1st of each year a notarized list of the active members of the Union. This recognition shall continue subject to the rules and regulations of the Public Employees Relations Board.



#### ARTICLE 3 RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES

- 3.1 Each of the parties hereto acknowledge the rights and responsibilities of the other party, the rights of individual employees under the law, and the responsibility of both parties to follow policies set by the Commissioner of Education and the Board of Education. If any Article or Section of this Agreement, or an Addendum thereto, should be held invalid by operation of law, or by a tribunal of competent jurisdiction, or if compliance with or enforcement of any Article or Section should be restrained by such tribunal, the remainder of this Agreement and Addenda thereto shall not be affected thereby and the parties shall enter into immediate collective negotiations for the purpose of arriving at a mutually satisfactory replacement for such invalid Article or Section.
- The Superintendent of Schools and Administrators will not interfere with the rights of employees of the District to become members of the Gouverneur School Related Personnel Union. There shall be no discrimination, interference, restraint or coercion by the Administration or any of its agents against any employee because of membership in the Union.
- 3.3 It is the continuing policy of the District and the Union that the provisions of this Agreement shall be applied to all employees covered by it without regard to race, color, religious creed, sex, or national origin.
- The Union agrees that neither it nor any of its officers or members will intimidate or coerce employees of the District into membership in the Union or will engage in Union activity during work hours.
- 3.5 The Gouverneur School Related Personnel Union, its officers, agents and members agree that for the duration of this Agreement, there shall be no strikes, sitdowns, slowdowns, stoppages of work nor any acts of any similar nature which would interfere with the regular instructional program and extra-curricular activities of the schools within the District or picketing of any kind or form, however peaceful and that it will not otherwise permit, countenance, or suffer the existence or continuance of any kind of these acts.



# ARTICLE 4 AREAS FOR DECISION AND AGREEMENT

- 4.1 The Gouverneur School Related Personnel Union recognizes the prerogative of the Superintendent to operate and manage the affairs of the District in all respects and in accordance with its responsibilities.
- The Board and Superintendent retain and reserve unto themselves all powers, authority, rights, functions, duties and responsibilities conferred upon and invested in them by the laws and Constitution of the State of New York and of the United States of America and such other rules and regulations promulgated by the Commissioner of Education.
- 4.3 The Board and Superintendent retain, solely and exclusively, the unqualified and unrestricted right to determine and make decisions on all terms and conditions of employment and the manner in which the operations of the district will be conducted except where those rights are clearly, expressly, and specifically limited in the Agreement. The rights, functions, duties, and responsibilities which are solely and exclusively the province of the Board and Superintendent include, but are not limited to: (1) full and exclusive management of the District, the supervision of all operations, the methods, processes, means and personnel by which any and all work will be performed, the control of property and the composition, assignment, direction and determination of the size and type of its working force; (2) the right to determine the work to be done and standards to be met by employees covered by this Agreement; (3) the right to change or introduce new operations, methods, processes, means or facilities, and the right to determine whether and to what extent work shall be performed by employees; (4) the right to hire, establish, eliminate or change classifications, assign, transfer, promote, demote, release and layoff employees; (5) the right to suspend. discipline, and discharge employees for the cause and otherwise to maintain an orderly, effective, and efficient operation.

### ARTICLE 5 PROCEDURES FOR CONDUCTING NEGOTIATIONS

- Negotiating Teams: The Board, or designated representative(s) of the Board will meet with representatives designated by the Union for the purpose of negotiating a successor agreement.
- Upon request of either party for a meeting to open negotiations, a mutually acceptable meeting date shall be set not more than 15 days following such request. All issues proposed for discussion shall be submitted in writing by the Union to the Superintendent at the first meeting. The Superintendent shall submit in writing to the Union representative all additional issues upon which to negotiate no later than the second meeting. The second meeting and all necessary subsequent meetings shall be called at times mutually agreed by the parties.



# ARTICLE 5 PROCEDURES FOR CONDUCTING NEGOTIATIONS (CONTINUED)

- Negotiations Procedures: Designated representative(s) of the Board of Education shall meet at such mutually agreed upon places and times with representatives of the Union for the purpose of effecting a free exchange of facts, opinions, proposals and counter-proposals in an effort to reach mutual understandings and agreement. Both parties agree to conduct such negotiations in good faith and to deal openly and fairly with each other on all matters. Following the initial meetings as described in paragraph 5.2 above such additional meetings shall be held as the parties may require to reach an understanding on the issue(s) or until an impasse is reached.
- 5.4 Exchange of Information: Both parties and/or the Board shall furnish each other, upon reasonable request, all available information pertinent to the issue(s) under consideration.
- 5.5 Consultant: The parties may call upon consultants to assist in preparing for negotiations, and to advise them during conference sessions. The expense of such consultants shall be borne by the party requesting them.
- 5.6 Committee Reports: The parties agree that during the period of negotiations or publication of a fact-finding report, the proceedings of the negotiations shall not be released unless such an issuance has the prior approval of both parties.
- 5.7 Reaching Agreement: When consensus is reached covering the areas under discussion, the proposed agreement shall be reduced to writing as a memorandum of understanding and submitted to the Union and the Board for approval. Following approval by a majority of the Union membership and by a majority of the Board of Education, the Board will take such actions upon the recommendation(s) submitted as are necessary to make them official. This Agreement shall become effective upon its approval by a majority of the Union members and a majority of the Board members.
- 5.8 Resolving Differences: In the event an Agreement is not reached by negotiations after full consideration of proposals and counter-proposals, the parties agree to utilize the impasse provisions of the Taylor Law.

# ARTICLE 6 CONDITIONS OF WORK

### 6.1 Emergency Closings

- 6.1.1 Maintenance personnel, custodians, and cleaners shall report for their regular shifts unless the *Superintendent of Schools or his/her designee* informs the members not to report, in which case members shall suffer no loss of pay and shall not have to make up the time. Staff members who work during a closing will be paid for hours worked.
- 6.1.2 All 12-month Secretarial and Account Clerk unit members: If school closing is announced prior to opening for the day and the schools remain



closed for the entire day, all 12-month Secretarial and Account Clerk unit members will not report for work unless specifically instructed to do so by the **Superintendent of Schools or his/her designee**.

# 6.2 Uniforms and Safety Apparel

Immediately following ratification of the collective bargaining agreement, two committees will be convened to select appropriate uniforms for cafeteria staff (Cafeteria Workers) and custodial staff (Cleaners, Custodians, Maintenance, Groundskeepers, Laborers, and Couriers). Each committee shall consist of the Supervisor (cafeteria or custodial), the Business Manager, and two unit members (cafeteria or custodial).

The cost for selected uniforms shall not exceed \$50 per uniform, and each worker shall receive 5 uniforms per fiscal year of employment.

The cost for selected steel-toed boots for custodial staff members shall not exceed \$150 per pair, and each custodial staff member shall receive no more than 1 pair of steel-toed boots per fiscal year. Employment related damage will enable the employee to receive an additional \$150 for a second pair of steel-toed boots with the prior approval by the Director of Facilities III.

Once selected, these uniforms and boots shall be mandatory apparel for applicable unit members. The District shall be responsible for purchasing this apparel within the parameters set forth in the preceding paragraphs. Any additional purchases which may become necessary will be the responsibility of the unit member. Additionally, all maintenance and cleaning of this mandatory apparel is the responsibility of the unit member.

- 6.3 Hours of Work Custodians: Custodians will work 8 hours per day, including the lunch period (subject to emergencies).
- Overtime: Overtime shall be at the rate of time and one-half for all hours over 40 hours per week and must be authorized by the appropriate supervisor.

  Custodians and maintenance personnel overtime will be based on building seniority rights. However, final assignment rests with the Director of Facilities III.

# 6.5 Additional Custodial Unit Work

6.5.1 Custodial and Maintenance personnel assigned by administration to check boilers and buildings on weekends will receive one (1) hour of work per day at the rate of time and one-half. Custodians required to check boilers and buildings on holidays will receive one (1) hour of work per day at two times the rate. Should such duties require more than one (1) hour of work per day, the Director of Facilities III should be notified. Pay for additional time is at the regular rate or at overtime rate if entitled to such pursuant to Article 6.4.

### 6.6 Maintenance personnel tool allowance:

The District will reimburse each maintenance person for the purchase of tools required in the performance of his duties for the District up to a maximum of \$300



per maintenance person during the life of this Agreement; provided that prior to purchasing the tools the unit member obtains the approval of the Director of Facilities III.

### ARTICLE 7 CONTINUITY OF SERVICE

7.1 The services of non-12-month employees shall be continued for each academic year or term and into any period immediately following established and customary school vacation periods until such time as a notice of termination is issued, provided that such employee has performed services for the District during the academic year, term or pre-vacation period that is immediately before such academic year, term, or vacation period. This clause shall in no way limit the District's right, during times that school is in session, to abolish positions, to discipline employees, or to dismiss employees, provided it complies with other terms of this Agreement and applicable laws.

# ARTICLE 8 CONFERENCE(S)

- 8.1 Secretarial, Account Clerks, Custodians, Maintenance, and Cleaning Personnel: If at such time a professional organization is formed which calls for a full day conference on the day of the teachers' conference, the above non-instructional employees may either participate in conference, or work as usual. If this day is taken off for any other reason not covered by present Personal Days or Sick Leave Policy, it is deductible.
- 8.2 The District will pay the expenses involved in sending two secretaries to the state conference of educational secretaries.
- 8.3 The District will pay the expenses involved in sending two cafeteria unit members to the state conference of educational cafeteria employees.
- The Union President shall notify the Superintendent in writing, which employee or employees are authorized to attend a state conference.

# ARTICLE 9 HEALTH INSURANCE PROGRAM

9.1 <u>Health Insurance Program</u>, provided through the St. Lawrence-Lewis Counties School District Employees Medical Plan, is contributory for all non-instructional personnel and dependents, while actively employed and retired except for those employees with a hire date prior to November 14, 1988. GSRPU unit members must work a minimum of Sixteen (16) hours per week to be eligible for insurance coverage.

Effective 11/1/2017, Rider 10 (as outlined in the Addendum to the Plan Document and Summary Plan Description for the Medical Plan) shall be implemented. This applies to members and dependents, active and retired.

The following tables reflect the unit member's contribution levels during **both active employment and during retirement**. To be eligible for health insurance benefits at retirement a unit member must have worked ten (10) years in the Gouverneur Central



School District and be eligible to retire, as defined by New York State Employees' Retirement System, upon retirement from Gouverneur Central School.

Active Members	2021 - 2022	2022 - 2023	2023 - 2024	2024 - 2025
Individual	10%	15%	15%	15%
Two Person	15%	15%	15%	15%
Two Person Shared	15%	15%	15%	15%
Family	15%	15%	15%	15%
Family Shared	15%	15%	15%	15%

Post-1988 Members In Retirement with 10 or more years	2021 - 2022	2022 – 2023	2023 - 2024	2024 - 2025
Individual	10%	15%	15%	15%
Two Person	15%	15%	15%	15%
Two Person Shared	15%	15%	15%	15%
Family	15%	15%	15%	15%
Family Shared	15%	15%	15%	15%
Pre-1988 Members while Active	2021 - 2022	2022 – 2023	2023 - 2024	2024 - 2025
Individual	10%	10%	10%	10%
Two Person	10%	10%	10%	10%
Two Person Shared	10%	10%	10%	10%
Family	10%	10%	10%	10%
Family Shared	10%	10%	10%	10%

Pre-1988 Members in Retirement	2021 - 2022	2022 – 2023	2023 - 2024	2024 - 2025
Individual	0%	0%	0%	0%
Two Person	0%	0%	0%	0%
Two Person Shared	0%	0%	0%	0%
Family	0%	0%	0%	0%
Family Shared	0%	0%	0%	0%

The contribution rate of a unit member hired after 11/14/1988 will be equal to the rate paid during their last year of active service.

Members, eligible for health insurance in retirement and retiring prior to July 1, 2022, will be entited to Medicare premium reimbursement for themselves and their spouse. Members retiring on or after July 1, 2022 will not be entitled to spousal Medicare premium reimbursement. Retirees are required to provide supporting documentation prior to reimbursement.

- 9.1.1 The District shall annually evaluate the advisability of offering the following insurance benefit option.
  - A. Upon a district determination to proceed, unit members with available health insurance coverage outside the St. Lawrence-Lewis Co. School Employees Health Plan shall be provided the option not to be covered by the health insurance provided under Article 9.1 of this agreement.
  - B. The unit member will be eligible to receive the following amount based on their coverage eligibility as of January 1<sup>st</sup> of each year or the date of hire, if hired after January 1<sup>st</sup>.



Individual Coverage	\$1600
Two person Coverage	\$2600
Three or more Person Coverage	\$3600

C. The unit member must execute an agreement with the District by December 20<sup>th</sup> of each year. The Agreement shall be effective for coverage from January 1<sup>st</sup> to December 31<sup>st</sup> only. The insurance shall be provided in accordance with 9.1 of the agreement unless a buyout option is executed. Payments to the unit member will be made as follows:

	June	December
Individual	\$800	\$800
Two Person	\$1300	\$1300
Family	\$1800	\$1800

The December payment will be made only if the GSRPU unit member is employed by the District for the period of July through December.

D. Once an agreement is executed, the unit member may not change their election during the calendar year unless the change is necessitated by and consistent with a change in family status. Benefit election changes are consistent with family status only if the election change is necessary or appropriate as a result of family status change. Any changes will result in a refund due to the District.

# ARTICLE 10 HOLIDAYS

- 10.1 ALL Twelve-month employees will observe the following holidays: Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, Friday following Thanksgiving, December 24, Christmas Day, New Year's Day, Martin Luther King's Birthday, Lincoln's or Washington's Birthday, Good Friday, (they shall work in the morning if school is in session), Memorial Day, Juneteenth Day, and Independence Day. (Years when the teaching force has two (2) days at Lincoln's or Washington's Birthday, or Memorial Day, the above employees may have either day; for example, if the holiday falls on Thursday, they may work Thursday and observe Friday if school is not in session.) If a holiday falls on a Saturday or Sunday, the Friday before or the Monday after shall be observed as the holiday if no students are in attendance. If students are in attendance, the unit member, at the District's discretion, shall be paid for the holiday or shall receive an additional day off during the year. Approval for such day must be obtained from the District in advance.
- 10.2 All 10-month employees will work the base year (September 1 June 30) and receive all school holidays, the same as the teaching staff, which fall between the first day of school and the last day of school.
- 10.3 All Twelve-month employees shall observe the day after Christmas in addition to the above.

# ARTICLE 11 VACATIONS

11.1 Twelve-month full-time employees will be granted two (2) weeks vacation after 12 months of continuous service in the school system, three (3) weeks after ten (10) years of service, and four (4) weeks after twenty (20) years of service.



- 11.2 Accrued Vacation Time Retirees: All vacation time accrued during the final year of employment and unused for 12 months by 12-month employees will be paid by the Board of Education at the regular salary rate of the retirees.
- 11.3 Vacation for part-time employees moving to full-time positions is based upon years of full-time service. For the purpose of this section, full-time positions are defined as custodians, maintenance, groundskeepers, 12-month secretaries, and account clerks.

# ARTICLE 12 SICK LEAVE

- 12.1 Sick Leave: All employees will be notified, in writing, at the end of each school year of the amount of their accumulated sick leave. Sick leave shall be earned at the rate of one (1) day per month. The allowable accumulation for twelve-month employees shall be 200 days; the allowable accumulation for ten-month employees shall be 180 days.
- 12.2 Sick leave may be construed to include sickness or death in the family for a reasonable number of days for emergency care for burial, not to exceed five (5) days per year.
- 12.3 If absence is the result of injury or sickness to be compensable under the New York State Workers' Compensation Act, the member may elect:
  - a) Not to use sick leave and take standard compensation payment, or
  - To use sick leave and pay the difference between standard compensation payments and the contract salary in addition to the former, or
  - c) To use sick leave with full pay and turn the standard compensation payments over to the school district.
- Sick leave shall be of nature that illness or injury can be verified by a physician. The Superintendent reserves the right to demand a written certification from a physician for any absence in excess of three (3) consecutive days, or if there is evidence that this provision is being misused, or any time when more than five (5) days of sick leave have been used during a given period.
- Any member of the bargaining unit who has fifteen (15) or more years of service in the District shall be eligible for a retirement incentive. A unit member must notify the District (with a pre-signed, irrevocable letter of retirement), not less than six (6) months prior to their effective date of retirement with the State Retirement System. Commencing July 1, 2015, unit members meeting the above stated requirements shall receive as a deposit to their 403(b) account, a non-elective employer contribution in the amount equal to \$30 per day for up to 200 days of unused sick leave for twelve-month employees (a maximum dollar amount of \$6,000) and 180 days of unused sick leave for ten-month employees (a maximum of \$5,400). During the last year of service, the contribution will be increased from \$30 per day to \$100 per day for the unused days accrued during the final year of service.

Any unit member who is forced to retire due to the unit member's life threatening/terminal disability shall, on the last day of employment, receive the retirement benefit as if that unit member had fulfilled the timely notification requirements of this provision. In the event of the death of an active employee who



is eligible for sick leave reimbursement, the District shall make required payments in accordance to New York State Law.

Monies shall be contributed no later than sixty (60) days following the last day of service and in accordance with, and subject to the conditions outlined below.

Employer 403(b) Non-Elective contributions shall be contributed in accordance with, and subject to the following condition:

- 1. No Cash Option: No employee may receive cash in lieu of or as an alternative to any of the Employer's Non-elective Contribution(s) described herein.
- 2. Contribution Limitations: In any applicable year, the maximum Employer Contribution shall not cause an employee's 403(b) account to exceed the applicable contribution limit under Section 415(c)(1) of the Code, as adjusted for cost-of-living increases. For Employer Non-elective Contributions made postemployment to former employees' 403(b) account, the Contribution Limit shall be based on the employee's compensation, as determined under Section 403(b)(3) of the Code. In the event that the calculation of the Employer Non-elective Contribution referenced in any of the preceding paragraphs exceed the applicable Contribution Limits, the Employer shall first make an Employer Non-elective Contribution up to the Contribution Limit of the Internal Revenue Code and then pay any excess amount as compensation directly to the Employee. In no instance shall the Employee have any rights to, including the ability to receive, any excess amount as compensation unless and until the Contribution Limit of the Internal Revenue Code are fully met through payment of the Employer's Non-elective Contribution. In no case shall the Employer Non-elective Contribution exceed the Contribution Limit of the Internal Revenue Code.
- 3. <u>403(b) Accounts:</u> Employer Non-elective contributions shall be deposited into the 403(b) account selected by the employee from the mutually approved vendors to receive said Employer contributions.
- Tier I Adjustments: Tier I members with membership dates prior to June 17, 1971, Employer Non-elective Contribution hereunder will be reported as non-regular compensation to the New York State Teachers' and/or Employees' Retirement System.
- 5. This section shall be subject to IRS regulations and rulings. Should any portion be declared contrary to law, then such portion shall not be deemed valid and subsisting, but all other portions shall continue in full force and effect. As to those portions declared contrary to law, the Association and Employer shall promptly meet and alter those portions in order to provide the same or similar benefit(s) which conform, as closest as possible, to the original intent of the parties.
- Both the Employer and Employee are responsible for providing accurate information to the 403(b) Provider. This information includes both Elective and Employer Non-Elective Contributions and the amount of the participant's Includible Compensation.
- 12.6 Sick Leave Bank The sole purpose of the sick leave bank is to provide additional sick leave to bank members who have exhausted their own sick leave and have suffered a prolonged disability. The sick leave bank shall be administered according to the guidelines below:



#### **DEFINITIONS**

<u>Prolonged Disability</u>: Inability to work caused by a disability which prevents someone from working for a substantial period of time (at least three weeks) as certified by a District appointed physician and would not include such illnesses as ordinary cold or other illnesses which would result in disability for a few days or less than three weeks.

- The Superintendent of Schools shall be responsible for the operation and enforcement of the sick leave bank, and for maintaining all pertinent records. The Superintendent shall establish a committee of two Union appointed representatives and two District representatives to review all applications for use of the sick leave bank and recommend to the Superintendent appropriate action. All recommendations shall be in accordance with the guidelines below and shall be approved by the Superintendent up to the first 300 days of any school year. Days beyond 300 which have been recommended by the committee may be approved or rejected at the discretion of the Superintendent.
- 12.6.2 Membership in the sick leave bank will be in accordance with the following guidelines:
  - 12.6.2.1 All unit members shall be eligible members of the sick leave bank. Each unit member wishing to be a bank member shall contribute two (2) sick leave days in July of each year for 12-month employees and September of each year for 10-month employees toward the sick leave bank. A sick leave bank shall exist each year if more than 50% of eligible members decide to join the sick leave bank.
  - 12.6.2.2 Any current unit member or new member not electing to join the bank within thirty days of eligibility shall not be eligible again to join until the following September.
- 12.6.3 When the total number of days in the bank reaches three hundred, no additional days will be contributed by the members except as follows:
  - 12.6.3.1 When the number of days falls below one hundred each member will be assessed one day.
  - 12.6.3.2 Unit members who do not join initially, including those hired after 7/1/97, will continue to contribute until the total contribution matches the maximum of the initial members.
  - 12.6.3.3 Any member of the bank who has exhausted his/her sick leave prior to additional donation periods will not be dropped from the bank because of the inability to contribute days.



# ARTICLE 12 SICK LEAVE (CONTINUED)

# 12.6 <u>Sick Leave Bank</u> (Continued)

12.6.4	Decisions of the Review Committee shall be in writing with the rationale for the decision. Such rationale shall then become part of the criteria for future decisions.				
12.6.5	to the Review shall submit so might request	Applications for the sick leave bank benefits shall be made in writing to the Review Committee. The unit member making the request shall submit such additional information as the Review Committee might request as necessary in making its decision. This information shall include a detailed physician's statement.			
12.6.6		ber can draw on the sick leave bank, all of his/her sick ve been exhausted.			
12.6.7	exhaustion of	nust be filed within four (4) weeks following the the person's sick leave. If members are incapable of fits in their behalf, another person may apply for them.			
12.6.8		committee shall act upon each request within five (5) The following general rules shall prevail:			
	12.6.8.1	The sick leave bank shall not be available for use in cases of family illness.			
	12.6.8.2	Sick leave payments shall terminate with the last pay period of the school year.			
	12.6.8.3	Benefits received from the sick leave bank shall not be repaid by the individual.			
	12.6.8.4	Benefits are applicable only to subscribing members and are not available for other than personal use.			
	12.6.8.5	Benefits apply only to days on which the applicant would have worked.			
	12.6.8.6	Sick leave bank benefits shall not commence before the 21 <sup>st</sup> day of sick leave, regardless of the unit member's own sick leave availability.			
8 "	12.6.8.7	Benefits from the sick leave bank are only available to members who have <u>completed</u> one full year of credited service in the unit.			
	12.6.8.8	Benefits will be awarded based on the following:  1 - 5 years based on anniversary date -30 days  6 - 10 years - 60 days  11 or more years - 90 days  Upon reapplication, a unit member may be eligible for 30 additional days from the sick bank			



# ARTICLE 13 FLEXIBLE BENEFITS (Section 125 Flexible Benefit Plan)

- 13.1 The Flexible Benefits Plan has been mutually designed by the school district and the GSRPU.
- 13.2 The Plan administrator will be determined by the school district with GSRPU involvement.
- Any unused monies in the employees' account will be forwarded to the Board Established Mini-Grant Fund for Technology
- The Central Committee for the Flexible Benefits Program made up of representatives from the school district and GSRPU will report back to the Board of Education and the GSRPU how the plan is working, as well as, the overall finances relating to the plan.
- A third party counselor at the prevailing per diem rate would be available to help set up the plan and for counseling on a group basis.

### ARTICLE 14 SPECIAL LEAVE

- 14.1 Each unit member shall be entitled to absence from duty for personal reasons for two (2) days each school year. Members need not specify the nature of the use of personal leave days. Except in case of emergency, the member must request the leave two (2) working days in advance. If less than two (2) working days notice is given, the Supervisor may request the reason and the member may be required to show that advance notice was not possible.
- 14.2 Personal leave is intended to be used for those matters which cannot be handled by the member during times other than working hours. Such leave shall not be used to extend vacation or holidays or for recreational purposes. However, five (5) unit members may use a personal leave day in conjunction with any vacation period provided they have given ten (10) working days notice, in writing, to the Superintendent. If more than five (5) apply, the Superintendent shall determine which unit members will be provided this benefit, using total seniority in the District as the primary criteria effective 2/1/94.
- 14.3 Unused personal leave shall accumulate as sick leave in the following year.
- 14.4 Each unit member who is employed for three (3) or more hours per day will have five (5) days available for bereavement for each death in the immediate family. Immediate family is defined as anyone living in the member's household, related to the member by blood, marriage or legal adoption. This leave will not be deducted from any other leave effective 2/1/94.
- 14.5 Ten (10) Union business days will be available to the Union. The President will notify the Superintendent forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the person(s) taking such leave and the duration of the same.



#### ARTICLE 15 SENIORITY

- All unit members acquire seniority for the purpose of layoff, recall, and bidding from the date of Board appointment, subject to the conditions of Articles 15, 16, and 17.
  - a) For the purposes of layoff and recall, seniority is defined as continuous service within job title; previous continuous service within a department shall be added to a unit members seniority in his current job title, provided that there is no break in total continuous service.
  - b) For the purpose of bidding rights, seniority is defined as continuous service with a department.
- A seniority list has been established as of July 1, 2017 and agreed upon by both the Union and the District. This seniority list will be used to determine eligibility when a position reduction occurs and which employee shall be afforded the opportunity to fill the new position.
- 15.3 Substitute employees do not acquire seniority and substitute experience in the District shall not be counted towards seniority.
- 15.4 Continuous service is broken by:
  - a) Resignation,
  - b) Discharge,
  - c) Layoff or off because of health or injury for a period of two (2) or more years,
  - d) Engaging in other employment during absence from work or while on a leave of absence without consent in writing of the Superintendent of Schools,
  - e) Upon recall following layoff, a failure to report for work, or to make arrangements satisfactory to the Superintendent within fifteen (15) days after written notice has been sent out by the Superintendent addressed by certified mail to his or her last known address on record with the School Administration,
  - f) Absence from work on seven (7) consecutive days, when scheduled to work without making satisfactory arrangements with the School Administration prior to the end of the 7th day, except upon proof of sickness,
  - g) Failure to report for work upon the termination of an unauthorized vacation or leave of absence without making satisfactory arrangements with the School Administration except upon proof of sickness,
  - h) Failure to return to work after an illness or disability, upon medical certification of ability to work. A doctor's certification of an employee's physical condition and when he or she may be available to work shall be furnished.
- Prior to October 1, the Superintendent shall prepare and submit to the President of the Union seniority lists for each of the several units with the bargaining unit. The President shall inform the Superintendent, in writing, of the accuracy of the lists prior to October 15.
- 15.6 The District, in conjunction with the GSRPU, will establish a seniority list based on the number of years of service in the job classification.



### ARTICLE 16 VACANCIES

- The Superintendent or his agent shall notify the President of the Union, in writing, of vacancies as they occur at least ten (10) working days prior to the position being filled. Unit members interested in filling the vacancy shall notify the Superintendent, in writing, within the time limit specified in the notice of vacancy.
- 16.2 If the Superintendent determines that the filling of a vacancy is necessary for the efficient operation of the District or of the educational program, a substitute appointment may be made while the posting process for unit members is set in motion.
- 16.3 Job awards: When awarding a posted job vacancy, the following factors shall be considered by the District:
  - a) The applicant's length of continuous service within the department.
  - b) The applicant's 'ability to perform the required duties, as determined by the District.
  - c) The applicant's physical fitness.
  - d) The applicant's residency if deemed relevant to the performance of the duties of the position.
  - e) The applicant's experience.

After consideration of the above factors, if the unit members have the ability and physical fitness (at the end of the posting period) to perform the posted position, then the length of continuous service shall govern.

- In the event a member is awarded a new job, he/she can retain his/her seniority in the job from which he/she transferred for the length of a trial period not to exceed fifteen (15) work days. The member has no seniority in the new job until he/she has accepted the new job, and has dropped his/her seniority in the job from which he/she transferred. If a member does not reject the job within the fifteen (15) work day trial period, he/she shall be considered as having accepted the new job. No member can hold seniority in two jobs. The administration has the right to accept or reject, subject to the grievance procedure, any member at any time during the fifteen (15) day trial period on a new job. A member, who rejects or is rejected from a job during the trial period, will return to the job in which his/her seniority applies with no loss of seniority.
- Subsequent openings (vacancies that occur as a result of a unit member being appointed to fill a vacancy for which notice is given):

  Between October 1 and the end of the school year, the District reserves the right to fill subsequent openings occurring as a result of the procedure in 16.1 on a temporary basis through the close of school. Such subsequent openings shall then be subject to the provisions of 16.1 following the close of school.

# ARTICLE 17 LAYOFF - RECALL

Should a reduction in force occur, layoff shall be by seniority within local job title. Recall shall be in inverse order to layoff. Recall rights shall be limited to two years from the date of layoff. The member must exercise his/her recall right by indicating his/her intention to return within two (2) business days of notification by the District.



ARTICLE 18 SALARY – The Salary Schedule outlines in Article 18, shall apply in accordance with Article 25 of this agreement. Salaries for other than stated hours per day shall be prorated (annual salary divided by number of days divided by hours per day listed = hourly rate).

Position & Level	20-21	21-22	22-23	23-24	24-25
		4.25%*	4.25%	3.50%	3.00%
Maintenance-12 Month	8 hours/day				
Level 1	\$56,540	\$58,943	\$61,448	\$63,599	\$65,507
Level 2	\$59,927	\$62,474	\$65,129	\$67,409	\$69,431
Groundskeeper- 12 Month	8 hours/day	, i			
Level 1	\$54,105	\$56,404	\$58,802	\$60,860	\$62,686
Level 2	\$57,346	\$59,783	\$62,324	\$64,505	\$66,440
Laborer - 12 Month	8 hours/day				
Level 1	\$43,254	\$45,092	\$47,009	\$48,654	\$50,114
Level 2	\$45,846	\$47,794	\$49,826	\$51,570	\$53,117
Custodial - 12 Month	8 hours/day				
Level 1	\$46,504	\$48,480	\$50,541	\$52,310	\$53,879
Level 2	\$49,290	\$51,385	\$53,569	\$55,444	\$57,107
Cleaner - 12 month	8 hours/day			10	
Level 1	\$36,309	\$37,852	\$39,461	\$40,842	\$42,067
Level 2	\$39,187	\$40,852	\$42,589	\$44,079	\$45,402
Courier - 12 Month	8 hours/day	*	755, 161	89	
Level 1	\$28,193	\$31,200	\$32,526	\$33,664	\$34,674
Level 2	\$29,883	\$33,280	\$34,694	\$35,909	\$36,986
Teacher Aide -180 days	7.5 hours/day	s " - IQ		La talente	tanga Ka
Level 1	\$24,387	\$25,423	\$26,504	\$27,432	\$28,255
Level 2	\$25,763	\$26,858	\$27,999	\$28,979	\$29,849
Individual Teacher Aide -180 days	7.5 hours/day	n = 20 0 0			95,954
Level 1	\$24,387	\$25,423	\$26,504	\$27,432	\$28,255
Level 2	\$25,763	\$26,858	\$27,999	\$28,979	\$29,849
Food Service Helper - 180 days	6 hours/day		a Ev		
Level 1	\$18,343	\$19,123	\$19,935	\$20,633	\$21,252
Level 2	\$19,369	\$20,192	\$21,050	\$21,787	\$22,441
Food Service Helper - 180 days	5 hours/day				
Level 1	\$15,285	\$15,935	\$16,612	\$17,193	\$17,709
Level 2	\$16,145	\$16,831	\$17,546	\$18,161	\$18,705



Food Service Helper - 180 days	2.75 hours/day				
Level 1	\$8,409	\$8,766	\$9,139	\$9,459	\$9,743
Level 2	\$8,880	\$9,257	\$9,651	\$9,989	\$10,288
-					
Cook - 180 days	6 hours/day				
Level 1	\$21,693	\$22,615	\$23,576	\$24,401	\$25,133
Level 2	\$22,921	\$23,895	\$24,911	\$25,783	\$26,556
Cook - 180 days	7 hours/day	9	) V () () () () () () () () () () () () ()	a e	
Level 1	\$25,308	\$26,384	\$27,505	\$28,468	\$29,322
Level 2	\$26,741	\$27,877	\$29,062	\$30,079	\$30,982
Secretarial - 10 Months - 200 Days	7.5 hours/day \$42,053	\$43,840	\$45,703	\$47,303	\$48,722
Level 2	\$44,549	\$46,442	\$48,416	\$50,111	\$51,614
Secretarial 12 Months	7.5 hours/day				
Level 1	\$52,221	\$54,440	\$56,754	\$58,741	\$60,503
Level 2	\$55,348	\$57,700	\$60,153	\$62,258	\$64,126
LPN - 180 Days	7.5 hours/day				
Level 1	\$28,858	\$30,084	\$31,363	\$32,461	\$33,435
Level 2	\$30,587	\$31,887	\$33,242	\$34,406	\$35,438
Keyboard Specialist - 180 Days	7.5 hours/day		- 4 <sub>1</sub> , 1	No are a sign	
Level 1	\$31,145	\$32,469	\$33,849	\$35,033	\$36,084
Level 2	\$33,678	\$35,109	\$36,601	\$37,883	\$39,019

- Salary level changes are based on the unit member's credited service within his/her job title. Members will advance to the appropriate salary schedule level on his/her anniversary date of hire.
- 18.3 After five (5) years of continuous credited service in a job title a member shall be placed on Level 2.
- Should a unit member transfer from one job title to another he/she shall be placed on the first salary level.
- 18.5 The following stipends will be paid to unit members:

a)	Working Lead Maintenance	\$ 750
b)	Working Lead Groundskeeper	\$ 750
c)	Lead Custodian	
	1) High School	\$ 750
	2) Middle School	\$ 750
	3) Elementary School	\$750
d)	Night Lead Custodian	
	1) High School	\$ 750



	<ul><li>2) Middle School</li><li>3) Elementary School</li></ul>		\$ 750 \$ 750
e)	Head Cook  1) High School  2) Middle School		\$ 400
	2) Middle School		\$ 400 \$ 400
•	3) Elementary School	D	5043 #100 - 5000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
T)	Banquet Rate:	Regular hourly rate plus \$1.00	per nour.

18.6 <u>Maintenance Call In</u>: Maintenance shall be paid a minimum two (2) hour show up time.

#### ARTICLE 19 - RETIREMENT PLAN

The District will provide the New York State Employees' Retirement System (NYSERS) Career Plan (Section 75g and 41j) to employees. Section 41j which applies to all Tiers of membership is described by the New York State Employee's Retirement System as follow: "The additional service credit is available only for those members who are included in a plan established by law, rule, regulation, written order or written policy that provides for the regular earning and accumulation of sick leave. The maximum additional service credit allowed under subdivision (j) is one hundred sixty-five (165) days. The additional service credit is applied on a calendar day basis (30 days = one month). Members who receive a cash payment based on their accumulated sick leave at retirement are not eligible for the additional service credit. Payments for unused sick leave cannot be considered in calculation of a members' final average salary."

Effective January 1, 2007, the District will provide NYSERS New Career Plan (Section 75i) and Section 41j.

#### ARTICLE 20 EVALUATIONS

A unit member may be evaluated at any time subject to the following conditions:

- If a written evaluation is conducted, it shall be conducted by an appropriate supervisor or administrator.
- A written evaluation must relate to the member's role as an employee and to the specific job he/she is hired to do.
- 20.3 There are no minimum or maximum numbers of evaluations during a given period of time.
- 20.4 If a written evaluation is to be placed in a member's official personnel file, a conference between the evaluator and the member shall be held.
- A written evaluation which is to be placed in a member's official personnel file shall be signed by the evaluator and the member and a copy given to the member. Such signature may not be withheld. The member's signature merely signifies that a conference was held and that he/she has received a copy of the evaluation. In no way does a signature indicate agreement or disagreement with its contents.
- 20.6 The member may attach a written answer to the evaluation. The answer shall be



signed by the member and the evaluator and shall be attached to the actual file copy.

The above Articles 20.1 - 20.6 shall not be construed to exclude the placement in the personnel file of letters, warnings, clarifications, or other materials pertaining to an employee's performance. The rights stated in 20.4, 20.5, and 20.6 shall apply to any material that is placed in the unit member's file.

# ARTICLE 21 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

DEFINITION - A grievance is a claim by a member or members of the unit, or the Union concerning any alleged violation, misapplication, or misinterpretation of the contract.

#### STAGES:

1) Informal - Grievant(s) will make an effort to settle the grievance informally with the supervisor. If the grievance is not settled informally, it will be reduced to writing and submitted to the immediate supervisor for a written reply within three (3) business days.

A grievance shall be deemed waived unless it is submitted within twenty (20) working days (of the aggrieved party) after the aggrieved party knew or should have known of the events or conditions on which it is based.

- 2) If the grievance remains unsettled, then the grievant will present the grievance in writing to the Superintendent within ten (10) working days of the receipt of the written decision at Stage 1. The Superintendent will give his or her written response to the grievant within five (5) business days of the presentation of the grievance.
- a) If the grievant and/or Union is not satisfied with the decision of Stage 2, they may submit the grievance to the arbitration by written notice to the Board of Education within ten (10) business days of the decision in Stage 2.
  - b) Within ten (10) business days such written notice of submission to arbitration, the Board and the Union will submit the dispute to a tripartite panel. Such panel shall be composed of one member selected by the Board, one by the Union, the third member chosen by the other two. In the event the two parties cannot agree on a third member, the Voluntary Rules of the American Arbitration Association shall be followed in order to make a selection.
  - c) The selected panel will hear the matter promptly and will issue their decision not later than fourteen (14) calendar days from the date of the close of the hearing, or if oral hearings have been waived, then from the date the final statements and proofs have been submitted to them. The panel's decision will be in writing and will set forth their findings of fact, reasoning and conclusions on the issues.
  - d) The panel shall have no power or authority to make any decision which requires the commission of an act prohibited by law or which is violative of the terms of this agreement.



- e) The decision of the panel shall be advisory upon all parties. The Board will accept, reject or modify the decision.
- f) The costs for the services of the panel, if any, will be borne equally by the Board and the Union.

# ARTICLE 22 PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS

The Board of Education of Gouverneur Central School District agrees to deduction from the salaries of its employees' dues for the New York State United Teachers, American Federation of Teachers, and Gouverneur School Related Personnel Union as said employees individually and voluntarily authorize the Board, in writing, to deduct and to transmit the monies to the Union. Employee authorizations shall be in writing in the form set forth below:

"Payr	roll Deduction Authorization"	4
Social Security Number		
Last Name	First	Middle
District Name Union		¥
To the Board of Education:  I hereby authorize you, according association, to deduct from my salary association for those organizations is monies so deducted and transmitted Board of Education and all its officinstruments heretofore made by me and effect for all purposes while I am writing between September 1st and 0.	y and transmit to said association indicated below. I hereby waived in accordance with this audicers from any liability therefor such purposes. This author employed in this school system	on, dues as certified by said re all right and claim to said athorization and relieve the ore. I revoke any and all rity shall remain in full force
Member signature	Da	te
21-2	100	4 1986

22.2 Effective July 1, 1978, the Gouverneur Central School District shall deduct from the wage or salary of employees in the bargaining unit who are not members of the Gouverneur School Related Personnel Union the amount equivalent to the dues levied by the Union and shall transmit the sum so deducted to the Union in accordance with Chapter 677 and 678 of the laws of 1977 of the State of New York.

The Gouverneur School Related Personnel Union affirms that it has adopted such procedure for refund of agency shop fee deduction as required in Section 3 of Chapter 677 and 678 of the Laws of 1977 of the State of New York. This provision for agency shop fee deduction shall continue in effect so long as the Union maintains such procedure.

The agency shop fee deduction shall be made following the same procedures as are applicable for dues checkoff, except as otherwise mandated by law or this Agreement.



The Union accepts financial responsibility for any and all litigation by a unit member against the District arising out of agency fee deduction from non-members of the Union, provided that the District does not encourage or promote such litigation.

#### 22.3 **NYSUT Benefit Trust**

The District shall allow Payroll Deduction for all members for the NYSUT Benefit Trust.

# ARTICLE 24 ORGANIZATION ACTIVITIES

The GSRPU may use bulletin boards, intra-District mail service, and employee mailboxes to notify members of GSRPU functions and benefits, as well as District openings, provided it does not interfere with the operation of the Gouverneur Central School District.

ARTICLE 25 DURATION

This agreement shall be effective 07/01/2021 through 06/30/2025.

BOARD OF EDUCATION, Gouverneur Central School District

By Yacquelyn X. Kelly Jacquelyn L. Kelly	, Superintendent of Schools
GOUVERNEUR SCHOOL RELATED PERSO	NNEL UNION
By STEM Besaw	, President
Steven M. Besaw	
Dated: 4/14/2022	
	Signed and Sworn to before me this, and, 2017. 2022.
	<u>Jatia Z Kenned</u> Notary Public

TATIA Z. KENNEDY Notary Public, State of New York No. 01KE4933135 Qualified in Jefferson County

Commission Expires \_